# **Public Document Pack**

# MINUTES of MEETING of HELENSBURGH & LOMOND AREA COMMITTEE held in the VICTORIA HALLS, HELENSBURGH on TUESDAY, 17 APRIL 2012

**Present:** Councillor Vivien Dance (Chair)

Councillor David Kinniburgh Councillor Andrew Nisbet
Councillor Ellen Morton Councillor James Robb

Councillor Gary Mulvaney

**Also Present:** Alison Younger – Central Governance Manager

Belinda Ruthven – Area Governance Assistant Fiona Campbell – Quality Improvement Officer Liz Marion - Social Economy Development Officer

Chris Shirley – Quality Standards Manager

Geoff Urie – Head Teacher, Hermitage Academy (Item 5(d )Only)

Jim Anderson – Leisure Performance Manager

Lorna Whyte – Facility Manager Mike Johnston – IOD Project Officer Hugh Blake – Senior Estates Surveyor Helen Ford – CHORD Project Manager

Jolyon Gritten - Access Manager

Prior to the commencement of the meeting, the Chairman, on behalf of the Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee, paid tribute to Councillor Al Reay, following his untimely death. She also passed on the good wishes of the Committee to Councillor Daniel Kelly and wished him a speedy recovery following his recent hospital stay.

The Chairman ruled and the Committee agreed, in terms of Standing Order 3.2.2 that a report regarding the Playing Fields at Rhu Road Higher, Helensburgh – Proposed Improvements by Helensburgh Cricket and Rugby Football Club, dealt with at item 9 of this minute, be taken as a matter of urgency as it is essential to implement these works prior to the commencement of the Helensburgh Highland Games on 2 June 2012.

#### 1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were intimated from:-

Councillor George Freeman Councillor Daniel Kelly Councillor William Petrie

#### 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Andrew Nisbet declared a non-financial interest in relation to item 9, 'Playing Fields At Rhu Road Higher, Helensburgh - Proposed Improvements by Helensburgh Cricket & Rugby Football Club', of this minute on the basis that he is a patron and past President of the Helensburgh Cricket and Rugby Football Club. He left the meeting during discussion of this item and accordingly took no part in the decision making process

#### 3. MINUTE OF MEETING 20 FEBRUARY 2012

The minute of meeting 20 February 2012 was approved as a correct record.

#### 4. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

#### Mr Bill Jones

Mr Jones enquired as to whether members were aware of the recent success of the Helensburgh Rugby Club this season in:-

- Winning the RBS West League Division 2 title and being promoted to the RBS West League Division 1
- Winning the RBS Reserve League West Pod A and getting promoted to RBS Reserve League West Division 1
- Winning the RBS West Regional Bowl Final and qualifying for the National Bowl Final.

Mr Jones was asked to pass on the heartiest congratulations from Committee and also their very best wishes on these recent successes.

It was proposed that a letter be sent to formally congratulate the teams.

Mr Alastair Macbeth passed on his congratulations to the Area Committee for their success in securing funding for the Pool and Leisure Facility and other Capital Gains secured for the Helensburgh area and asked whether this had been achieved through individual or cross party co-operations, to which he was advised that it had been the latter.

Members were in agreement that consensus was always required to ensure these outcomes and were keen that the work of securing further funding would continue, as there were still some improvements to be made regarding the leisure facilities and also that credit should be given to Councillors Argyll and Bute wide as well as previous Councillors.

Mr Macbeth also referred to his previous concerns that Helensburgh and Lomond did not receive their 'fair share' of funding and whilst he recognised the rural nature of much of Argyll and Bute, he felt that this was still not being addressed.

In discussion, members felt that it should be said that 'fair share' should not be confused with 'same share' and examples were given of why this should be and that quality of service was paramount.

The importance of increased public awareness and engagement was highlighted as one of the positive outcomes in the area, particularly during the recent consultation exercises in the town.

#### Tony Davey – Cardross Community Council

Mr Davey welcomed the proposed increase to the community council administration grants of £10k Argyll and Bute wide and referred to the much

valued goodwill and voluntary work carried out by community councillors in the area.

Mr Davey then asked that recognition be given to Councillor Reay, who had recently passed away, for his enthusiasm and zeal as spokesperson for the Veterans, and trusted that this would be continued to the same extent following the forthcoming elections.

## <u>Sephton MacQuire</u> – <u>Helensburgh Highland Games</u>

Mr MacQuire passed on his thanks to Argyll and Bute Council for funding which had enabled a further championship to be held at the Helensburgh Games. He advised that there were now a total of four of these championships which in turn increases the amount of competitors that the Games attract.

#### 5. COMMUNITY SERVICES

#### (a) MOD FUNDING STEERING COMMITTEE

Members considered a report by the Quality Improvement Officer regarding a bid placed by Argyll and Bute Council Education Service for funding from the £3m Support Fund for Schools with Service Children and were advised that the service had been successful in its bid under a number of headings, including £1000 to set up and run a Steering Group.

#### **Decision**

- 1. Agreed to endorse the composition of the Steering Group as set out in Appendix 1 of the submitted report.
- 2. Agreed that details of the Steering Group should now be circulated to all relevant organisations.
- 3. Agreed to note that Councillor representation on the Steering Group will be finalised by the Area Committee post election.
- 4. Agreed to record their congratulations to officers for securing the award

(Report by Quality Improvement Officer, dated 22 March 2012, submitted)

#### (b) THIRD SECTOR GRANTS 2012/2013

Twenty Third-Sector Grant Applications were presented for consideration

#### **Decision**

- 1. Agreed that all Third Sector Grant applications are treated on merit.
- 2. Noted the Helensburgh and Lomond Third Sector Grant budget of £35000 for the financial year 2012/ 2013.

# 3. The Third Sector Grants were determined as follows:-

	<u>Organisation</u>	<u>Narrative</u>	Total Project Costs	<u>Awarded</u>
2.1	1st Rhu Scout Group	The application is for capital spends (tents, ground sheets etc) this does not comply with the criteria.	£6,022	£0
2.2	Acting Up	Contribution towards salary costs for the provision of arts workshops for young people.	£1,253	£630
2.3	Arrochar, Tarbet and Ardlui Heritage Group	A contribution towards the updating of brochures and displays.	£2,920	£1,110
2.4	Bicentenary Pipe Band Championships	A contribution towards the purchase of permits, insurances, advertising and catering for judges.	£10,019	£4000
2.5	Cardross, Colgrain and Craigendoran Senior Citizens Forum	A contribution towards the provision of a Summer and Christmas outing and lunches for isolated older people.	£3,280	£500
2.6	Cosy Sports and Recreation Group	The application is for canoes which are considered capital spend.	£4,352	£0
2.7	Cove and Kilcreggan Lunch Club	The provision of transport to the lunch club and outing for elderly people highlighted as socially isolated.	£2,439	£600
2.8	Cove and Kilcreggan Old People's Welfare Association	A contribution towards bus hire and hospitality events for older people.	£2,225	£280
2.9	Cove Burgh Hall	This application is ineligible as it is for Ladies toilets, capital spend.	£7,700	£0
2.10	ENABLE (Helensburgh and Lomond Branch)	A contribution towards 43 weeks of club activity, short breaks and 2 activity days for adults with learning difficulties.	£8,440	£780
2.11	Gibson Community Centre	To contribute towards the cost of 2 events to raise the profile of the hall. Plus a contribution towards subscriptions and insurances required to provide a community facility to the public.	£12,476	£1,300

2.12	Helensburgh and District Access Trust	The hosting of a long distance race on 3 <sup>rd</sup> June along the newly refurbished 3 Lochs way. The event is to promote Pancreatic Cancer research	£5,050	£1,850
2.13	Helensburgh and Lomond Highland Games	A contribution towards the costs of the Helensburgh and Lomond Highland Games	£4,650	£4000* Subject to revised application being received and satisfactorily assessed.
2.14	Helensburgh and Lomond Youth Forum	To contribute towards the provision of a summer program of activities for young people.	£1,445	£140
2.15	Helensburgh Heritage Trust	A contribution towards the costs of a number of events to celebrate the bicentenary of the paddle steamer Comet. These include a Steamboat event and a sailing competition.	£21,800	£3,000
2.16	Helensburgh Savoy	A contribution towards the costs of the production of 'Fiddler on the Roof'.	£13,781	£1,500
2.17	MS Society - Dumbarton & District Branch	A contribution towards the costs of hall hire and physiotherapist and for local MS sufferers.	£3,625	£1,400
2.18	Rosneath & Clynder Senior Citizens Association	A contribution towards the provision of 3 events for socially isolated senior citizens.	£2,395	£350
2.19	Rosneath Peninsula Highland Gathering	A contribution towards the costs of the Highland Gathering to be held in Rosneath in June.	£12,020	£4000
2.20	Rosneath Peninsula West Community Development Trust	A contribution towards the hosting of a number of events including a film show, parade, Poetry event and boat sculptures by local school children.	£4,250	£2,000

4. Agreed that these awards are pending confirmation of receipt of End of Year Reports for 2011/12, outstanding documentation and financial assessment and that the amount available for consideration at the August 2012 Area Committee would be £7560

(Report by Community Development Officer, dated 17 April 2012 submitted)

## (c) PROPOSAL FOR PRIMARY SCHOOL REPORTING

Members were briefed by the Quality Standards Manager on the current process for the provision of information on primary school achievements to elected members and advised of the complexity and time-consuming nature of this approach.

#### **Decision**

- Agreed that Education Scotland (HMIE) reports on individual schools be presented to the relevant Business Day by the head teacher following the report's publication.
- 2. Agreed that the Quality Improvement Officer(s) for the schools in each area attends the Area Committee on an annual basis to provide a brief update on issues pertaining to the schools in the area, eg. Awards, new appointments or major curriculum developments.
- 3. Agreed that the Quality Improvement Officer(s) attend the Local Area Community Planning Group on an annual basis to present the Education Service's Standards and Quality Report, outlining any local issues.

(Report by Quality Standards Manager, dated 17 April 2012, submitted)

#### (d) HERMITAGE ACADEMY STANDARDS AND QUALITY REPORT

Members were briefed by the Head Teacher, Hermitage Academy on the contents of the Attainment and Achievement Report for 2012. The SQA results were outlined and members heard an update on the Curriculum for Excellence.

#### Decision

- 1. To note the update by the Head Teacher, Hermitage Academy.
- 2. Agreed to request that the Head Teacher, Hermitage Academy, circulate benchmarking report in the form of DVD to members.
- 3. Agreed to congratulate the pupils, Head Teacher, staff and parents of Hermitage Academy on their achievements.

(Hermitage Academy Attainment and Achievement Report, dated April 2012, submitted)

#### (e) LEISURE SERVICES UPDATE

Members were briefed on a report by the Leisure Performance Manager which outlined the performance of Helensburgh Pool comparing a full year in 2008/9 to a full year in operation in 2011/12. Members were also provided with the user numbers for the Victoria Halls over the past two

years. A Power-point presentation by the Facility Manager on the current and ongoing development of the Helensburgh Swimming Pool and Victoria Halls was also given.

#### **Decision**

- 1. To note the contents of the report and presentation.
- 2. Agreed to commend the Officer and staff on their commitment and performance in the successful management of both facilities.

(Report and PowerPoint Presentation by Leisure Performance Manager, dated 17 April 2012, submitted)

#### 6. CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S - IMPROVEMENT AND HR

#### (a) AREA SCORECARDS

Members were briefed by the IOD Project Officer on a report on the findings following the data workshop session on 20 February 2012 which members had attended and also on the draft Area Scorecard which was based on those findings.

#### **Decision**

- 1. Agreed to review the findings of the data selection session.
- Agreed to adopt the resultant area scorecard but refer the further refinement of performance data to the new Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee.
- 3. Agreed that all references to LEADER funding in the scorecard be amended to read 'External Grants' in order that it is relevant to Helensburgh and Lomond area.

(Report by Performance Manager, dated 17 April 2012, submitted)

# 7. CUSTOMER SERVICES

#### (a) THE QUEEN'S DIAMOND JUBILEE - THE BIG LUNCH

Members were briefed by the Area Governance Manager on a report which outlined the background to 'The Big Lunch' event and which proposed how the Council can support this as part of the celebrations for HM The Queen's Diamond Jubilee.

#### **Decision**

- 1. Agreed that this initiative is dealt with in the same manner as other events to celebrate the Queen's Diamond Jubilee by disseminating this to community councils to promote within their local communities.
- 2. Agreed that the paperwork is circulated to the relevant services to

ensure that support for the event is provided where possible.

(Report by Executive Director, Customer Services, dated 4 April 2012, submitted)

# (b) **COMET ARCHWAY - HUGH BLAKE**

Members were advised in a report by the Senior Estates Surveyor, of a request from the Helensburgh Heritage Trust to erect a two-dimensional silhouette of Henry Bell's ship 'The Comet' on a grassed amenity area forming part of the Helensburgh Pier. The proposed location was indicated on an attached plan.

#### **Decision**

- 1. Agreed to note the content of the submitted report.
- 2. Agreed that additional information is gathered regarding the structure and whole life costs of the proposed silhouette and a further report brought to the next meeting of the Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee for consideration.

(Ref: Report by Senior Estates Manager, dated 17 April 2012, submitted.)

#### 8. DEVELOPMENT AND INFRASTRUCTURE

# (a) CONSOLIDATION OF ROADS AND AMENITY SITES TO BLACKHILL DEPOT UPDATE

Members were advised by the CHORD Project Manager, that the Full Business Case (FBC) for the consolidation of depot services in Helensburgh to Blackhill Depot was now complete and will go forward to the Executive in May for approval.

#### Decision

- 1. Agreed to note that the FBC will be presented to the Executive in May 2012 for approval.
- 2. Agreed to request that an update report be brought to the June 2012 Area Committee.

(Ref: Report by Executive Director of Development and Infrastructure Services, dated 11 April 2012, submitted)

## (b) OBJECTIONS TO CORE PATHS NETWORK

Members considered a report from the Access Manager on the objections received following the public consultation for the Core Paths Plan following the Public Consultation which closed on 4<sup>th</sup> April 2011.

#### **Decision**

- 1. Agreed to note the content of the submitted report.
- 2. Agreed that members are invited to make comments on the submitted reports during the 4 week consultation period that commences at a date after 17<sup>th</sup> April 2012.
- 3. Agreed that members encourage Community Councils to discuss and comment on the submitted reports.

(Ref: Report by Access Manager, dated 17 April 2012, submitted)

Having earlier declared an interest in the following item, Councillor Andrew Nisbet left the room and took no part in the discussion of this item.

# 9. PLAYING FIELDS AT RHU ROAD HIGHER, HELENSBURGH - PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS BY HELENSBURGH CRICKET & RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB

Members were asked to note the contents of a report by the Estates Surveyor, on the proposed improvement works proposed by the Helensburgh Cricket and Rugby Football Club (HCRFC) to the leased playing fields at Rhu Road Higher, Helensburgh.

# **Decision**

Agreed to note the content of the submitted report.

(Ref: Report by Estates Surveyor, dated 17 April 2012, submitted.)

There being no further business, the meeting closed at 1.15pm and the Chair gave her thanks to all members and officers for their commitment over the past five years, and on behalf of the present Helensburgh and Lomond Area Committee, wished the new Committee all the very best for the future.

